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LONG GLADE FARM
Augusta County, Virginia

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

Long Glade Farm, located in northwestern Augusta County, consists of a mid-
nineteenth century dwelling surrounded by several outbuildings and agricultural
structures as well as a family cemetery. Contributing buildings include the house,
a meat house, former slaves quarters, a corn crib, a bank barn, and a pig house, and
the contributing site is the cemetery; noncontributing twentieth-century structures
include a pergola, foot bridge, gazebo, and observation deck. The farm contains a
combination of rolling hills, open fields, and woods that create a picturesque
setting which is enhanced by the current ownet's extensive garden and landscape
improvements. The Greek Revival period house is in excellent condition and
retains its historic integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship,
feeling, and association.

This two-story, brick dwelling is a traditional I-house form with an original ell
containing a dining room and kitchen. Set upon a coursed-rubble, limestone
foundation, the original sections of the main house, including the front block and
rear el], are constructed of brick laid in stretcher bond with a continuous molded
brick cornice and returns at the gable ends. A standing-seam-metal gable roof
covers the entire house. Dominated by a Greek Revival-style porch with Doric
columns and a balustrade, the three-bay front facade is laid in stretcher-bond brick.
The center bay features an entry typical of the period with a two-panel door
flanked by sidelights. The transom above has large consoles to either side. A
similar tripartite door arrangement on the second floor accentuates the central bay,
and is set back from the second floor balcony. Six-over-six, double-hung-sash
windows flank this central bay on either side at both floor levels. They have
architrave type window casings with flush wood sills and are framed with
louvered shutters.

Both the east and west ends of the main block of the house feature a blank brick
wall laid in five-course American-bond brick with a centrally located brick
chimney. The chimney, also executed in five-course American-bond, has stepped
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shoulders; a single, four-light, fixed window is located at either side in the wall at
the attic level.

Since it was constructed at the same time, the rear ell has six-over-six, double-
hung-sash windows with architrave surrounds, a slightly projecting exterior end
chimney, and is constructed of five-course American bond brick like the main
body of the house. A single door with a transom and sidelights is located to either
side of the ell, and each opens out onto a porch from the dining room.

An original porch, screened in in recent years, is located off the east side of the
porch. It has been partially enclosed with weatherboard siding. A two-story,
frame addition abuts the porch and is located on the west face of the rear ell.

This central-passage-single-pile-plan dwelling contains most of its original fabric.
Almost all of the woodwork and mantels appear to date from the original period
of construction, and much of the original oak graining survives in the central hall.
The window and door trim as well as the stair spandrel wall all feature oak
graining over a layer of purple-tinted primer paint. In the center hall, the open
stringer stair with rectangular balusters, a turned column newel, ornately carved
brackets and raised panels in the spandrel, leads to the second floor.

The dwelling has four-to six-inch heart pine flooring, plastered walls, and four-
panel doors with original rim locks in the center hall and two-panel doors off the
center hall at the second floor level. The moldings throughout are symmetrical
with bull's-eye corner blacks. :

The east parlor contains the bull's-eye motif in both the plaster ceiling medallion
and a Greek Revival-style mantel with small corner blocks. Both echo the door
and window casings on the main level, while the west parlor has a simple mantel
with flat pilasters (which is possibly a replacement). The dining room features a
simple moided chair rail with beaded ogee trim. The plaster has been removed
and the brick walls have been sealed in the kitchen.

Later alterations include a bathroom tower addition on the rear of the house, a
small brick addition on the west side of the ell, and the reconstruction of the front
porch based on historic photographs.
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In addition to the main house, the property contains an assortment of contributing
outbuildings including a hip-roofed brick meat house, a two-story brick structure
that reportedly was the original slave quarters, a frame corncrib, a frame pig house,
and a large post-and-beam bank barn. More recent additions to the site include a
garden gazebo and a pergola as well as a wooden observation deck and a smail
wood frame foot bridge over a stream to the east of the house.

The contributing meat house, located to the north of the main house and
constructed in the mid-nineteenth century , is a brick structure laid in five-course
American-bond brick with a pyramidal, standing-seam-metal roof and a single
door enfry on the south side. Entry is gained through a beaded board-and-batten
door that is secured with strap hinges. Two horizontal, diagonal brick vents are
located on the west and east elevations. Large meat hooks are located on the
exposed interior rafters and there is no evidence that any meat smoking, rather
than meat curing, was ever done in this building.

Directly to the west of the meat house, a two-story brick dwelling thought to be an
original slaves' quarters occupies the site and contributes to the historic farm. Laid
In five-course American-bond brick in the middle of the nineteenth century , the
slave quarters features one interior end corbelled chimney and has a recent frame
kitchen addition to the west side. Paired single entry doors mark the front
elevation and are flanked on either side by six-over-six, double-hung-sash
windows with architrave surrounds matching the main house. The second-floor
level has smaller six-over-six, double-hung-sash windows located above the first-
story windows with no openings above the door locations. Set upon a parged,
coursed rubble foundation, the house has a standing-seam-metal, side gable roof.
The building has been remodeled and is used as a guest house and a flower drying
shop. The first floor originally consisted of two separate rooms, but the dividing
wall has been removed to create one large space. An interior stair has been added
to gain entry to the two bedrooms on the upper level. There is evidence of an
original exterior stair (now removed) to the upper level board-and-batten door on
the south elevation of the building.

A large, contributing, frame corncrib is located directly in front of the main house
to the south and features an expansive standing-seam-metal gable roof with
exposed rafter ends. Built in the nineteenth century and later remodeled, this
three-bay, frame structure features white washed weatherboard siding and central-
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sliding, vertical doors with surrounding earth ramps on the west gable end. Much
of the interior is constructed of hand-hewn members (though some may have
been reused from other structures) with pegged pole rafters, while the deck boards
are of a later era and have circular saw marks.

Set upon a coursed rubble limestone foundation, a contributing, frame bank barn
built at the turn-of-the-century of reused members is located to the south of the
corncrib. The walls are clad with weatherboard siding with a pair of large vertical-
board doors on the west side. The two-story east elevation features open vents at
the first level with three single wooden doors and a projecting overhang at the
second floor level. A lean-to machinery shed addition is located off this elevation
and is of frame construction, supported on wooden posts. A lattice-work monitor
with a gable roof is set atop the ridge in the center of the standing-seam metal gable
roof that also features four lightning rods. The interior of the bank barn is divided
into three bays and is constructed of heavy timber framing members, which are
hand hewn with pegged mortise and tenon joints. Two large beams run the
entire length of the barn and are spliced with a notched and pegged connection.
The roof construction consists of rafters supported by a ridge board. It appears that
the barn has been constructed of a mixture of earlier hand hewn beams
supplemented by later circular sawn members.

Adjacent to the bank barn is a frame pig house, built in the twentieth century, that
is clad in weatherboard with a metal shed roof. This building appears to date to
the earlv-to-mid-twentieth century and contributes to the overall character of the
farm.

In addition to the historic buildings on the site, there is a family cemetery located
across Route 607 on the east side of the house. The cemetery contains several
marble headstones supported on granite bases and one marble obelisk belonging to
Willlam Howell, the original owner of Long Glade Farm. Also interred in the
cemetery is Harrison T. Bolen, who died in 1864. The cemetery measures
approximately twenty-five feet by fifteen feet and is surrounded by a cast iron fence
with no gate.

More recent, noncontributing additions to the site include a frame pergola and a
gazebo located within the extensive gardens added by the current owner to the
west of the house. The gazebo was intended to be a simplified variation of the
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design of a similar structure added to the gardens of the Woodrow Wilson
Birthplace in Staunton by the Garden Club of Virginia. Other more recent
additions to the property include a frame foot bridge and an observation deck
consisting of a brick base with a wood railing.

Historic photographs and a painting show the front porch, which was faithfully
reconstructed to its original appearance by the current owner. Wedge-shaped
bricks from the removed columns were found under the bungalow-style porch
and used in circular designs within the floor of the gazebo and in the portico west
of the ell. The current owner also has added a brick wall and garden gate between
the former slave quarters and the meat house. Historic photographs also reveal
the former location of exterior picket fences. Now a rail fence surrounds the entry
lane.

The present owner has added many site improvements including the extensive
ornamental flower, vegetable, herb gardens to the west of the house. Laid out in
rows and terraces with walls of shrubbery and focal points of the gazebo and
pergola, the entire composition adds a new and pleasing dimension to the site.
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LONG GLADE FARM
Augusta County, VA

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Long Glade Farm is historically significant as an extant, antebellum farm complex
with a dwelling and a good sampling. of associated outbuildings. The property
embodies the typical characteristics of a mid-nineteenth-century farm containing a
traditional brick I-house with Greek Revival details in Augusta County, Virginia.
The dwelling retains much of its integrity including its floor plan and woodwork
as well as its oak graining in the stair hall. Since the construction of the main
house between 1848 and 1852, Long Glade Farm has remained in continuous
operation. Contained on the site is a rare surviving example of a2 Shenandoah
Valley brick slave quarters and a meat house along with a large corncrib, a late-
nineteenth-century bank barn, a pig house, and a family cemetery plot. Many of
the outbuildings were built at the turn-of-the century, the second significant
period of the property.

Historical k a

Located in the heart of Augusta County, Virginia, Long Glade Farm is composed
ot 104-acre tract of rolling hills, open fields, and wooded areas. Several years after
his marriage to Sarah Jones (1804-1877) and the birth of their three daughters,
Lucinda Virginia (1834-1912), Hannah (1837-?), and Estaline Susan (?-1849),
William Howell (1806-1877) began purchasing land near Spring Hill and the
‘"headwaters of Long Glade.” On 30 August 1839, he bought a 100-acre parcel from
James R. and Martha Curry.! The next year Howell bought 270 acres from Robert
and Elizabeth Snapp for $3,500.2 Both tracts are described in their respective deeds
as being on the headwaters of Long Glade and adjoining the property of Bethuel
Herring, Samuel Miller, John Lambert, and others. (Both these tracts and the one
purchased subsequently can be traced to Caleb Griffith and his wife, who bought it
in 1808.) While William Howell bought and sold some twenty-two pieces of

1 Augusta County Deed Book 60, page 311.
2 Augusta County Deed Book 61, page 102.
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property between 1839 and 1870, this acreage would form the nucleus of what
would eventually become known as the Howell-East Homestead.?

Five years later, in 1845, Howell purchased 100 acres on the north side of the
Middle River from Jacob Spitler, Bethuel Herring, Martin Yount, and others. The
deed indicates that the Swinks lived on this land at the time of the transaction.4
Later that same year, Howell purchased "4 acres, 2 rods, and six poles" of land
between the headwaters of Long Glade and Middle River, adjoining

lands of Spitler and Howell which co-joined his property.5 William Howell now
had the 408 1/2 contiguous acres upon which he would soon build his home.

Tax records show that William Howell first paid real estate tax in 1840: $.60 on 100
acres valued at $600 lying nine miles north of the courthouse in Staunton. The
next year he paid $.75 in taxes on the 100 acres and $2.70 on the 270 acres purchased
from the Snapps. Between 1842 and 1844 Howelil's taxes remained unchanged,
save for a very slight overall increase in 1843, explained, perhaps, by some special
county tax levied that year. After his purchase of 104 acres from the Swinks in
1845, Howell's taxes increased proportionately.

Tax records further indicate that William Powell began construction on his house
in 1848 and completed it in 1852. Tax records in 1848 note two buildings valued at
5108 on the 104-acre tract, and one valued at $1,080 on the 270-acre tract increased
the properties' value and duly raised Howell's taxes. Howell's taxes jumped again
on the 270-acre parcel in 1851 and again in 1853, when the land and appurtenances
were valued at $6,750. That year Howell paid $12.13 in taxes, nearly a fifty percent
increase from the pervious year and 290 percent from the 1850 taxes.

Other evidence indicates that the house William Howell began in 1848 was not yet
complete at the time of the 1850 census. William Howell and his family are listed
in that census as living with James Wood, an illiterate laborer, and his family.

3 Howell purchased lots in the village of Springhill, tracts along the Parksburg Pike, and tracts on
Moffett's Creek three of four miles Southwest of his home. [t appears that he owned no significant
acreage prior to his first major purchase of land in 1839.

* Augusta County Deed Boo 65, Page 160.

2 Augusta County Deed Book 66, page 163.
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Malanda Swink is listed in the Wood household in the 1850 census and again as a
part of the Howell household in the 1860 census.

Howell enlarged his Long Glade holdings on 2 September 1851, when he
purchased 265 acres adjoining his land for $1,500.25. This particular tract was sold

- at a public auction in order to settle a chancery case between A. M. and C. S.
Francisco and Julia Miller. The land had belonged to Samuel Miller (a neighbor of
Howell's) "late of Missouri died seized.”® Howell completed the land assembly of
his farm with the purchase of eighty eight acres for $2,000 from John Lambert in
1853.7

In the 1860 census, William Howell's real estate was valued at $28,000 and his
personal property at $1,500. It is quite likely that Howell worked his land himself,
aided by a male slave, and perhaps hired additional slave labor as needed. He is
listed as owning two slaves in 1850; his slave holdings grew to five by 1860, but all
of his slaves, save one, were women. It is noted in the 1860 Slave Schedule that
there were two slave dwellings on his property.

In 1869, Howell conveyed the farm to his daughter, Lucy Howell East, and her
husband Colonel Samuel A. East for $17,500.8 They, in turn, raised four children
on the farm, which passed out of the family in 1908. Each of their children
contributed to the local community. William Howell East (1868-1948) was
prominent in local affairs as a member of the Virginia Highway Commission,
director of the National Valley Bank, and a trustee of Mary Baldwin College, and
served as a member of the Virginia State Senate from 1924 to 1936. Another son,
Charles M. East (1877-1927), was a former city attorney for the city of Staunton as
well as a local banker and organizer of the Staunton Rifles (an unattached
company of the National Guard). Mary Edmonia East was a skilled artist who sold
many of her drawings to contemporary periodicals including the New Yorker
Magazine. She lived with her other brother, John East, a New York attorney.

Following the East family ownership, the property was transferred six times
between 1908 and 1973 when the current owner, Georgia S. Vance and her late

& Augusta County Deed Book 71, page 422.
7 Augusta County Deed Book 73, page 186.
8 Augusta County Deed Book 85, page 51.
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husband, James D. Vance, purchased Long Glade Farm (then known as Springdale)
and renamed the farm Short Glade. Georgia S. Vance is a nationally recognized
artist in floral decorations using dried plant materials and author of the book The
Decorative Art of Dried Flower Arrangements. The Vances reconstructed the
missing Greek Revival-style front porch and added extensive gardens to the site.
The surrounding fields are rented out to neighboring farmers and the entire
complex retains much of its physical character from the turn of the century.
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Zone 17/ 668660 Easting/ 4238370 Northing
Zone 17/ 668430 Easting/ 4238070 Northing
Zone 17/ 667980 Easting/ 4238530 Northing
Zone 17/ 667980 Easting/ 4238580 Northing
Zone 17/ 668060 Easting/ 4238720 Northing
Zone 17/ 668160 Easting/ 4238710 Northing
Zone 17/ 668550 Easting/ 4238730 Northing
Zone 17/ 688600 Easting/ 4238710 Northing

OZZMrA-"IPMUODO®»

Verbal Boundary Description
The boundary line is indicated on the attached USGS map and corresponds to the above mentioned UTM reference

points.

Boundary Justitication ’
The boundaries for the Long Giade National Register Historic District correspond directly the current legal boundaries of
the property owned by Georgia Vance and inciude only property historically included in the Long Glade Farm. The
boundary inciudes the farmhouse and contributing outhuildings that have been historically associated with Long Glade
Farm. The current property boundaries preserve the visual integrity of the ndge line and the edge of the woods both
historically associated with the farm compiex.
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in purple and woodland compiled In cooperation with
A Virginia agencies from aenial photographs
other sourges, This information npt held checked
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ROAD GLASSIFICATION "o,
Light-duty road, all weather, 0";‘9@
improved surface ——__ 28
Unimproved road, fair or dry 1'%—1'0@

weather
«:_ ' Slate Route
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THIS MAP COMPLIES WITH NATIONAL MAP ACCURACY STANDARDS
FOR SALE BY U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, DENVER, COLORADO 80225,
OR RESTON, VIRGINIA 22092
AND VIRGINIA DIVISION OF MINERAL RESOURCES, CHAILOTTESVILLE, VIRGINIA 22903
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Revisions showr in purple and woodiand cor
Commonweaith of Virginia agencies fiom ae
taken 1982 and other sources.  This inteny.,
Way edited 1986






